
 

Audit Committee 
 

 
 

Thursday 22nd March 2018 
 
10.00 am 
 
Main Committee Room, Council Offices, 
Brympton Way, Yeovil BA20 2HT 
 

(disabled access and a hearing loop are available at this meeting venue)     
 

 
The following members are requested to attend the meeting: 
 
Chairman: Derek Yeomans 
Vice-chairman: Tony Lock 
 
Jason Baker 
Mike Best 
Carol Goodall 
 

Anna Groskop 
Val Keitch 
Graham Middleton 
 

David Norris 
Colin Winder 
 

 
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please contact the 
Case Services Officer (Support Services) on 01935 462596 or 
democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk  
 
This Agenda was issued on Tuesday 13 March 2018. 
 

 
 

Alex Parmley, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

This information is also available on our website 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk and via the mod.gov app 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/


Information for the Public 

 
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the 
risk management framework and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of 
the authority’s financial and non-financial performance, to the extent that it affects the authority’s 
exposure to risk and weakens the control environment and to oversee the financial reporting 
process. 
 
The Audit Committee should review the Code of Corporate Governance seeking assurance 
where appropriate from the Executive or referring matters to management on the scrutiny 
function. 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are: 
 
Internal Audit Activity 
 
1. To approve the Internal Audit Charter and annual Internal Audit Plan; 

2. To receive quarterly summaries of Internal Audit reports and seek assurance from 
management that action has been taken; 

3. To receive an annual summary report and opinion, and consider the level of assurance it 
provides on the council’s governance arrangements;  

4. To monitor the action plans for Internal Audit reports assessed as “partial” or “no 
assurance;” 

5. To consider specific internal audit reports as requested by the Head of Internal Audit, and 
monitor the implementation of agreed management actions;  

6. To receive an annual report to review the effectiveness of internal audit to ensure 
compliance with statutory requirements and the level of assurance it provides on the 
council’s governance arrangements;  

 
External Audit Activity 
 
7. To consider and note the annual external Audit Plan and Fees;  

8. To consider the reports of external audit including the Annual Audit Letter and seek 
assurance from management that action has been taken; 

 
Regulatory Framework 
 
9. To consider the effectiveness of SSDC’s risk management arrangements, the control 

environment and associated anti-fraud and corruption arrangements and seek assurance 
from management that action is being taken; 

10. To review the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and monitor associated action 
plans; 

11. To review the Local Code of Corporate Governance and ensure it reflects best 
governance practice. This will include regular reviews of part of the Council’s Constitution 
and an overview of risk management; 

12. To receive reports from management on the promotion of good corporate governance; 
 
Financial Management and Accounts 
 
13. To review and approve the annual Statement of Accounts, external auditor’s opinion and 

reports to members and monitor management action in response to issues raised; 



 

 

14. To provide a scrutiny role in Treasury Management matters including regular monitoring 
of treasury activity and practices. The committee will also review and recommend the 
Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy, MRP 
Strategy, and Prudential Indicators to Council; 

15. To review and recommend to Council changes to Financial Procedure Rules and 
Procurement Procedure Rules; 

 
Overall Governance 
 
16. The Audit Committee can request of the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, or 

the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Services) a report (including an independent review) 
on any matter covered within these Terms of Reference; 

17. The Audit Committee will request action through District Executive if any issue remains 
unresolved; 

18. The Audit Committee will report to each full Council a summary of its activities.  
 
 
Meetings of the Audit Committee are usually held monthly including at least one meeting with 
the Council’s external auditor, although in practice the external auditor attends more frequently. 
 
Agendas and minutes of this committee are published on the Council’s website at 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk 
 
Agendas and minutes can also be viewed via the mod.gov app (free) available for iPads and 
Android devices. Search for ‘mod.gov’ in the app store for your device and select ‘South 
Somerset’ from the list of publishers and then select the committees of interest. A wi-fi signal will 
be required for a very short time to download an agenda but once downloaded, documents will 
be viewable offline. 
 

Members questions on reports prior to the Meeting 

 

Members of the Committee are requested to contact report authors on points of clarification prior 
to the Committee meeting. 
 

Recording and photography at council meetings 

 
Recording of council meetings is permitted, however anyone wishing to do so should let the 
Chairperson of the meeting know prior to the start of the meeting. The recording should be overt 
and clearly visible to anyone at the meeting, but non-disruptive. If someone is recording the 
meeting, the Chairman will make an announcement at the beginning of the meeting. If anyone 
making public representation does not wish to be recorded they must let the Chairperson know. 
 
The full ‘Policy on Audio/Visual Recording and Photography at Council Meetings’ can be viewed 
online at:  
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of
%20council%20meetings.pdf 
 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District Council 
under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory functions on 
behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where 
they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset District Council - 
LA100019471 - 2018. 
 

 

http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of%20council%20meetings.pdf
http://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/documents/s3327/Policy%20on%20the%20recording%20of%20council%20meetings.pdf


Audit Committee 
 
Thursday 22 March 2018 
 
Agenda 
 

Preliminary Items 
 
 

1.   Minutes  

 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 February 2018. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (as amended 26 February 2015), 
which includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal interests 
(and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting.   
 

4.   Public question time  

 

5.   Date of next meeting  

 
Councillors are requested to note that the next Audit Committee meeting is scheduled to be held 
at 10.00am on 26 April 2018 in the Main Committee Room, Brympton Way, Yeovil. 
 
 
Items for Discussion 
 

6.   2018/19 SWAP Internal Audit Plan (Pages 5 - 8) 

 

7.   Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 (Pages 9 - 18) 

 

8.   Accounting Policies for 2017/18 Statement of Accounts (Pages 19 - 35) 

 

9.   Audit Committee Forward Plan (Pages 36 - 37) 

 
 



 2018/19 SWAP Internal Audit Plan 

 
Head of Service: Gerry Cox, Chief Executive - SWAP 
Lead Officer: Ian Baker, Director of Quality / Laura Wicks, Senior Auditor 
Contact Details: ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk / 

laura.wicks@southwestaudit.co.uk 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
As a key element of its Governance arrangements the Council has a partnership arrangement with 
South West Audit Partnership to deliver an annual internal audit plan.  The Executive Director and 
Senior Auditor for SWAP, together with the Council’s S151 Officer have produced an Audit Plan for 
2018/19 that requires the approval of the Audit Committee. 
 

Recommendation 
 
That the Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for April 2018 to March 2019.  
 

Background 
 
This plan has been pulled together with a view to providing assurance to both Officers and Elected 
Members of the current and imminent risks faced by the Authority in an ever-changing risk 
environment. If an emerging risk or a fraud investigation is deemed higher risk than the audits in this 
Audit Plan, then changes may be required during the year.  The Committee are approving the initial 
plan and changes required in year will be reported to Committee quarterly for approval.  
 
To ensure that to the best of our ability we have covered the necessary risks, the Executive Director, 
Senior Auditor and the Section 151 Officer have together, whilst also considering audits already 
undertaken in recent years, produced the plan detailed in Appendix A. Our audit plan will remain 
flexible throughout the year to accommodate emerging high risks and required changes in assurance 
focus to meet the Council’s needs. 
 
Section 1: Core Governance and Core Finance Audits: 
 
Advice and Meetings - Internal Audit are risk experts and as well as undertaking planned audits are 
always glad to assist officers where they seek advice on managing their risks.  Similarly, to enable 
effective governance Internal Audit work closely with the External Auditors and with the Section 151 
Officer and the Audit Committee through regular liaison meetings and progress reporting. 
 
ICT Audits Reviews – IT Reviews are completed to provide the Authority with assurance with regards 
to their compliance with industry best practice.  SWAP has specialist Computer Auditors who has 
liaised with the IT Lead Specialist to identify specific IT related risks, which include support through the 
Transformation programme on agile working across the first three quarters of the year and Disaster 
Recovery in Quarter 4.  
 
Key Financial Controls Audits - This process focuses primarily on key risks relating to the Council’s 
major financial systems. There are 8 recognised key financial systems; Capital Accounting, Creditors, 
Debtors, Housing and Council Tax Benefits, Main Accounting, Council Tax & Non-Domestic Rates, 
Payroll, Treasury Management.   
 
Due to Service Redesign, we have recommended that the full suite of financial control audits is 
undertaken during the year to assess the new control environment. The exact scope of these audits 
will be agreed with the S151 Officer prior to commencement, taking into account emerging and current 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

mailto:ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk


issues. Using our risk-based methodology, it may be possible that in future years these can be 
undertaken on a cyclical basis, however it is useful to have a baseline view of the new processes. 
 
Section 2: Risk Based Audits: 
 
A number of audits have been included within this Section to reflect areas of high and/or strategic risk 
facing the Council. The scope is agreed with the Audit Lead and a risk evaluation matrix is devised 
and controls are tested.  Where weaknesses or areas for improvement are identified, actions are 
agreed with management and target dated. The audits listed are informed by wider macro-economic 
factors, such as the Financial Resilience/Contract Monitoring audit and risks arising as a result of the 
Council’s Transformation and strategic direction. Audits that were deferred from the 2017/18 Plan in 
favour of Transformation support have also been included within this Section.   
 
Section 3: Advice and Consultancy: 
 
A number of days will be allocated to support the Council’s Transformation project, in similar vein to 
2017/18. Early engagement with us will be key to ensure that resource is appropriately focussed on 
emerging risks. In addition, a pot of days has been allocated to Benefits Realisation in Quarter 4, to 
look to provide assurance that Transformation has delivered the intended benefits. 
 
Section 4 – Other Assurance Areas: 
 
Annual Accounts Certification – As included in previous years, we will undertake certification of the 
annual accounts for Yeovil Cemetery and Crematorium and the Boden Mill/Chard Regeneration 
Scheme. 
 
Follow Up Audits – Internal Audit follow up on all outstanding recommendations with Management and 
the Cyber Security 2017/18 Audit, where two significant findings were identified.  A pot of days will be 
allocated to follow up these recommendations. 
 
 

Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications associated with these recommendations.   
 
 
 
Background Papers: None 

 

 
 

 

Page 6



 
 
Appendix A - 2018/19 SWAP Internal Audit Plan 

Audit Theme / Service Area Specific Topic or Activity Quarter 

Section 1 - Core Governance and 
Core Finance Audits 

    

Corporate Advice 
 Support and Advice 
  
  
  

1 - 4 

Committee Reporting and Attendance 1 - 4 

Planning/Client Liaison 1 - 4 

External Audit 1 - 4 

ICT Audit Reviews     
EU General Data Protection 
Regulations 

SWAP to provide the cross-cutting report to SSDC with focus on common findings. 1 

Disaster Recovery  
Focus on DR after the third stream of transformation takes place. 
Business Continuity could go into Q1 of 2019-20, once services have moved into new model. Days 
changed from 15 to 10. 

4 

Agile Working 

Support through transition - moving to Agile work force. Focus on mobile devices/ technical security, 
staff training. Focus on timing across Q1,2,3 (8 days in each) in line with implementation of three 
workstreams:  
1 support services 
2 strategy and commissioning 
3 direct service  

1 - 3 

Main Accounting, Budgetary Control 
and Capital Accounting 

Full suite to be delivered given the change in controls as part of Transformation 

3 

Treasury Management and Bank 
Reconciliations 

3 

Payroll 3 

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) 3 

Accounts Payable (Creditors) 3 

Cash Receipting 3 
 
Risk Management 
 

No risk officer yet in place – Committee keen to understand risk arrangements  4 

 

P
age 7



 
 
Appendix A - 2018/19 SWAP Internal Audit Plan 

Audit Theme / Service Area Specific Topic or Activity Quarter 

Section 2 - Risk Based Audits     

Housing Benefit Subsidy Claims Assurance required to ensure systems and processes are in place to minimise the risk of error 4 

S106 Agreements and Funds 
Audit review to ensure S106 Agreement and Funds are monitored and reported regularly - Deferred 
from 17/18 

2 

Commercial Strategy/Income 
Generation  

New approach by SSDC to raise additional income – is this achieving as required? To include Asset 
Management & Property Acquisitions 

4 

Procurement and Contract 
Management Governance (Supply 
Chain) 

Currently buying in expertise from TDBC - ensure compliant with FR's and SO's - value for money is 
being achieved. 

1 - 2 

Financial Resilience/Contract 
Monitoring  

Emerging risk following Carillion collapse – is the authority managing contracts for financial 
robustness? Link to MTFP - is Governance and Reporting on track? (Not LED - separate audit - see 
below) 

2 

Lone Working Arrangements  Part of Transformation – consideration of the management of Health & Safety and/or productivity  4 

Leisure East Devon (LED) Contract 
Compliance  

Deferred from 17/18 - still big risk area. Due to staff changes there may have been a loss of 
knowledge 

1 

Section 3 - Advice and Consultancy      

Transformation Programme 
Continued Transformation Support - likely completion in January 2019 - ad-hoc support to projects - 
may include business as usual regarding income collection e.g. Car Parks. 

1 - 3 

Benefits Realisation Non-opinion piece of work to review the projected outcomes of the Transformation Programme 4 

Section 4 - Other     

Annual Accounts Certification Yeovil Cemetery & Crematorium Annual Accounts  1 

Annual Accounts Certification Boden Mill/Chard Regeneration Scheme 1 

Follow Up Audits Follow Up of Previous Year Recommendations 2 

 

P
age 8



Internal Audit Charter 2018-19 

 
Head of Service: Gerry Cox, Chief Executive - SWAP 
Lead Officers: Ian Baker, Director of Quality / Laura Wicks, Senior Auditor 
Contact Details: ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk / 

laura.wicks@southwestaudit.co.uk 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
The internal audit service provided by the South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP), works to a 
Charter that defines its roles and responsibilities and the roles and responsibilities of the County’s 
managers as they relate to internal audit.   
 
Best practice in corporate governance requires that the Charter be reviewed and approved annually 
by the Audit Committee. 
 

Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to approve the updated Internal Audit Charter (Appendix A). 
 

Background 
 
The Charter was last reviewed by the Audit Committee at their meeting on 27 April 2017.   
 
The changes to the Charter are highlighted in yellow, which reflect the updated responsibilities of the 
Assistant Director and SWAP’s continued conformance to the Standards of Institute of Internal 
Auditors and further guided by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 
   

Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications associated with these recommendations.   
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

mailto:ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk


 

Internal Audit  Risk  Special Investigations  Consultancy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Somerset District Council  
Internal Audit Charter  

22 March 2018 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reviewed February 2018

P
age 10



 

 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation 
provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

 

Contents 
 
The contacts at SWAP in  
connection with this report are: 
 
Gerry Cox 
Chief Executive 
Tel: 01935 385906 
gerry.cox@southwestaudit.co.uk 

 
 
Ian Baker 
Director of Quality 
Tel: 07917 628774 
ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk 

 
 
Alastair Woodland 
Assistant Director 
Tel:  07720 312467 
alastair.woodland@southwestaudit.co.uk 

 

  Internal Audit Charter:  

  Purpose and Approval Page 1 

    

  Provision of Internal Audit Services, Role of Internal Audit  Page 2 

    

  Responsibilities of Management and of Internal Audit Page 3 

    

  Relationship with the External Auditors/Other Regulatory Bodies Page 4 

    

  Status of Internal Audit in the Organisation Page 4 

    

  Scope and authority of Internal Audit work Page 5 -6 

    

  Planning and Reporting Page 7 

    

    

    

    

 

P
age 11

mailto:ian.baker@southwestaudit.co.uk
mailto:alastair.woodland@southwestaudit.co.uk


Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 1 

 

The internal audit charter is a formal 
document that defines internal 
audit’s purpose, authority, 
responsibility and position within the 
organisation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Purpose 

  
 The purpose of this Charter is to set out the nature, role, responsibility, status and authority of internal auditing 

within South Somerset District Council, and to outline the scope of internal audit work. 
 
 
 

  Approval 

  
 This Charter was approved by the Audit Committee on 27 April 2017 and is reviewed each year to confirm it 

remains accurate and up to date.  It was last reviewed by the Audit Committee* on 22 March 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*The standards require that Internal Audit report to the Board. CIPFA have, via the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

Guidelines, determined that the Audit Committee in this instance represents the Board.  

P
age 12



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 2 

 

The charter sets out the nature of 
services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives.  

  Provision of Internal Audit Services 

  
 The internal audit service is provided by the South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP).  SWAP is a Local 

Authority controlled company.  This charter should be read in conjunction with the Service Agreement, which 
forms part of the legal agreement between the SWAP partners. 
 
The budget for the provision of the internal audit service is determined by the Council, in conjunction with the 
Members Meeting.  The general financial provisions are laid down in the legal agreement, including the level of 
financial contribution by the Council, and may only be amended by unanimous agreement of the Members 
Meeting. The budget is based on an audit needs assessment that was carried out when determining the 
Council’s level of contribution to SWAP.  This is reviewed each year by the Section 151 Officer in consultation 
with the Chief Executive of SWAP. 
 

  Role of Internal Audit  

  

 

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, state that: “A relevant authority must undertake an 
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account the public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” 
 
Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve 
the Council’s operations.  It helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 13



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 3 

 

The charter should set out the nature 
of services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives.  

  Responsibilities of Management and of Internal Audit  

  
 Management~ 

Management is responsible for determining the scope, except where specified by statute, of internal audit work 
and for deciding the action to be taken on the outcome of, or findings from, their work. Management is 
responsible for ensuring SWAP has:  
 

 the support of management and the Council; and 

 direct access and freedom to report to senior management, including the Council’s Chief Executive and the 
Audit Committee. 

 
Management is responsible for maintaining internal controls, including proper accounting records and other 
management information suitable for running the Authority.  Management is also responsible for the 
appropriate and effective management of risk. 
 

Internal Audit 
Internal audit is responsible for operating under the policies established by management in line with best 
practice. 
 
Internal audit is responsible for conducting its work in accordance with the Code of Ethics and Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and further guided by 
interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government 
Application Note. SWAP has been independently assessed and found to be in Conformance with the Standards. 
 
Internal audit is not responsible for any of the activities which it audits.  SWAP staff will not assume 
responsibility for the design, installation, operation or control of any procedures.  SWAP staff who have 
previously worked for South Somerset District Council will not be asked to review any aspects of their previous 
department's work until one year has passed since they left that area. 
 
~In this instance Management refers to the Leadership and Management Team.  
 

P
age 14



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 4 

 

The charter should set out the nature 
of services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives.  
 

  Relationship with the External Auditors/Other Regulatory Bodies 

  
 Internal Audit will co-ordinate its work with others wherever this is beneficial to the organisation. 
  
  

  Status of Internal Audit in the Organisation 

  
 The Chief Executive of SWAP is responsible to the SWAP Board of Directors and the Members Meeting. 

Appointment or removal of the Chief Executive of SWAP is the sole responsibility of the Members Meeting. 
 
 The Chief Executive for SWAP, the Executive Director and Assistant Director also report to the Section 151 
Officer, and reports to the Audit Committee as set out below. 
 
 
The Assistant Director will be the first and primary point of contact for South Somerset District Council for all 
matters relating to the Audit Committee, including the provision of periodic reports. The Assistant Director is 
also responsible for the design, development and delivery of audit plans, subject to the agreement of the 
partner or client. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 5 

 

The charter should set out the nature 
of services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives.  

  Scope and authority of Internal Audit work 

  
 There are no restrictions placed upon the scope of internal audit's work. SWAP staff engaged on internal audit 

work are entitled to receive and have access to whatever information or explanations they consider necessary to 
fulfil their responsibilities to senior management. In this regard, internal audit may have access to any records, 
personnel or physical property of South Somerset District Council. 
 
Internal audit work will normally include, but is not restricted to: 
 

 reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means used to 
identify, measure, classify and report such information; 
 

 evaluating and appraising the risks associated with areas under review and make proposals for 
improving the management of risks; 
 

 appraise the effectiveness and reliability of the enterprise risk management framework and recommend 
improvements where necessary; 
 

 assist management and Members to identify risks and controls with regard to the objectives of the 
Council and its services; 
 

 reviewing the systems established by management to ensure compliance with those policies, plans, 
procedures, laws and regulations which could have a significant impact on operations and reports, and 
determining whether South Somerset District Council is in compliance; 
 

 reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of assets; 
 

 appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed; 
 

 
 

P
age 16



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 6 

 

The charter should set out the nature 
of services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives. SWAP Performance - 
Summary of Audit Recommendations 
by Priority 
 
 

  Scope and authority of Internal Audit work 

  
  

 reviewing operations or programmes to ascertain whether results are consistent with established 
objectives and goals and whether the operations or programmes are being carried out as planned; 
 

 reviewing the operations of the council in support of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption policy; 
 

 at the specific request of management, internal audit may provide consultancy services provided: 
 
 

 the internal auditors independence is not compromised  
 the internal audit service has the necessary skills to carry out the assignment, or can obtain such skills 

without undue cost or delay 
 the scope of the consultancy assignment is clearly defined, and management have made proper 

provision for resources within the annual audit plan 
 management understand that the work being undertaken is not internal audit work 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



Internal Audit Charter 
 

 

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

Page 7 

 

The charter should set out the nature 
of services that internal audit will 
provide and how internal audit will 
help the organisation to achieve its 
objectives. Added Value 
 
 

  Planning and Reporting 

  
 SWAP will submit to the Audit Committee, for approval, an annual internal audit plan, setting out the 

recommended scope of their work in the period. 
 
The annual plan will be developed with reference to the risks the organisation will be facing in the forthcoming 
year, whilst providing a balance of current and on-going risks, reviewed on a cyclical basis.  The plan will be 
reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure it remains adequately resourced, current and addresses new and 
emerging risks. 
 
SWAP will carry out the work as agreed, report the outcome and findings, and will make recommendations on 
the action to be taken as a result to the appropriate manager and Director.  SWAP will report at least four times 
a year to the Audit Committee.  SWAP will also report a summary of their findings, including any persistent and 
outstanding issues, to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. 
 
Internal audit reports will normally be by means of a brief presentation to the relevant manager accompanied by 
a detailed report in writing.  The detailed report will be copied to the relevant line management, who will 
already have been made fully aware of the detail and whose co-operation in preparing the summary report will 
have been sought.  The detailed report will also be copied to the Section 151 Officer and to other relevant line 
management. 
 
The Assistant Director will submit an annual report to the Audit Committee providing an overall opinion of the 
status of risk and internal control within the council, based on the internal audit work conducted during the 
previous year. 
 
In addition to the reporting lines outlined above, the Chief Executive of SWAP and SWAP Directors and Assistant 
Directors have the unreserved right to report directly to the Leader of the Council, the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, the Council’s Chief Executive Officer or the External Audit Manager. 
 
 

 

P
age 18



 

Accounting Policies for 2017/18 Statement of Accounts  

 
Director: Netta Meadows, Strategy and Commissioning 
Lead Officer: Karen Gubbins, Finance Specialist 
Contact Details: karen.gubbins@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462456 
 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To request that members of the Audit Committee note the Accounting Policies for 2017/18 so that the 
Statement of Accounts 2017/18 can be prepared on this basis. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
That members note the Accounting Policies (as per appendix 1) to be applied to the 2017/18 
accounts. 
 

 
Background 
 
It is a statutory requirement for all local authorities to produce financial statements that are compliant 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   
 
Appendix 1 presents the Statement of Accounting Policies for 2017/18. Accounting Policies are the 
specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Authority in preparing 
financial statements. 
 
The S151 Officer has approved the policies on Thursday 8th March 2018. 
 

 
Key Accounting Policy Changes 
 
There are no new accounting policies for 2017/18. 
 

 
Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications in accepting this report and the associated recommendations.  
 
 

Background Papers:  Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2017/18: Guidance Notes for Practitioners 

 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Statement of Accounting Policies 
 
1. General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and 
its position at the year-end of 31 March 2018.  The Authority is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those regulations require 
to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under Section 21 of 
the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2017/18, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular: 
 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 
 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably 
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 
 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the Balance Sheet. 
 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 
 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 
 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty 
on notice of not more than 24 hours.   
 
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. SSDC will include 
deposits in Money Market Funds and Business Reserves in Cash Equivalents. 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 20



In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of the bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management. 
 
4. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current 
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events 
and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, 
it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
5. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
  

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 
 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

 

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the 
reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the authority in accordance with statutory guidance. 
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the 
contribution to the General Fund Balance (MRP), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
6. Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and non-monetary 
benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in 
which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the 
year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the 
wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the 
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, 
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are 
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
 

Page 21



Termination Benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the earlier of; when the 
authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the authority recognises costs for 
a restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve 
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 
but unpaid at the year end. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits 
Employees of the Authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Somerset County Council, which provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions),  earned as employees worked for the Authority. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. 
 

 The liabilities of the Somerset County Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to the retirement benefits 
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates, etc, and projected earnings for current employees. 

 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 19 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond curve. 

 

 The assets of the Somerset County Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet at their fair value: 
- quoted securities - current bid price.  
- unquoted securities – professional estimate 
- unitised securities – current bid price 
- property – market value 

 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

 Service Cost Comprising: 
- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year is allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services 
for which the employees worked. 

- Past service costs – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years is debited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

- Net interest on the net defined benefit liability, ie net interest expense for the authority – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 

Page 22



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 
to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and 
benefit payments. 

 

 Remeasurements Comprising: 
- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

- Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 

 Contributions paid to the Somerset County Council Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 
with the amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
Pension Fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The 
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather 
than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
7. Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 
for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statements of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
8. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the 

Page 23



contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried 
at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of 
the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.  
 
This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable 
and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable 
for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where repurchase has taken 
place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of 
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised 
cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
 
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. 
The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over a minimum period equal to the outstanding 
term on the loan or 10 years (if shorter) against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed 
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
Financial Assets 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 

 Loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in 
an active market 

 

 Available-for-sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments 

 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument.  This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the 
relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future 
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 
 

Page 24



Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Available-for-sale Assets 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. 
Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument.  Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (eg dividends) is credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 
 
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Values are based on the following 
techniques: 

- Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 
- Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cashflow analysis 
- Equity shares with no quoted market prices – multiple valuation techniques (which include 

market approach, income approach and cost approach). 
 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 

- Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date 

- Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset, either directly or indirectly 

- Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The 
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these are debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls 
below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed or 
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against 
the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the 
Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment 
losses) 
 
9. Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions 

Page 25



and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that: 

 The authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 
in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 
in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited 
to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. 
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been 
applied to fund capital expenditure.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
The authority has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  The levy will be charged 
on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent.  The 
Council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge.  The income from the levy will 
be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and 
schools) to support the development in the area. 
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement date of 
the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance 
with the accounting policy for government grants and contributions set out above.  CIL charges will be 
largely used to fund capital expenditure.   
 
10. Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) are capitalised at cost when it is expected 
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised 
cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might have fallen in value – any losses 
recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 
the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 

Page 26



Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and 
(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
11. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 
inventories is assigned using the FIFO (first in first out) costing formula. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
12. Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. 
All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return 
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of specific assets. 
 
The Authority as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 
the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the 
obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the 
asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent 
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between:  

 a charge for acquisition of the interest in the property, plant and equipment - applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 
authority at the end of the lease period) 
 
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and 
revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General 
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Page 27



Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Authority as Lessor 
 
Finance Lease 
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, 
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or 
Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the 
Authority’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value 
of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance 
Sheet.  
 
Lease rentals are apportioned between:  
 

 a charge for acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease debtor 
(together with premiums received), and 

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital 
receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 
Capital receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the amount due in relation 
to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out 
of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of 
the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are 
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets 
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating Leases 
When the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
13. Overheads and Support Services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 
 

Page 28



14. Investment Properties 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that 
would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best 
use.  Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The same treatment is 
applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance.  However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 
 
15. Joint Operations 
 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have control of the arrangement have rights 
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.  The activities undertaken 
by the Authority in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of 
those joint operators.  In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Authority as a joint operator 
recognises: 

- Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly 
- Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly 
- Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 
- Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation 
- Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 

 
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense 
when it is incurred.  There are two exceptions to this: 
 

 The expenditure incurred is below £10,000, except Capital Grants where the limit is £1,000. In 
such cases expenditure is charged direct to the revenue accounts. 

 The asset is acquired through an operating lease when rental payments are charged to the 
revenue account. 

 
 

Page 29



Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing 
the asset into working condition for its intended use (such as purchase price; any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management).   
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis: 
 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

 Surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and 
best use from a market participant’s perspective 

 All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 
existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

 
Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are re-valued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year end, but as a 
minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve 
to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.  
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Capital expenditure incurred in enhancing assets or increasing their useful life is classed as enhancing 
expenditure. 
 
Assets which have been significantly enhanced are brought forward in the five-year rolling programme 
to ensure that the independent valuer can correctly assess their new carrying value, this ensures that 
any potential overstatement only reflects a short timing difference between the enhancement taking 
place and the valuer assessing its impact on the asset’s carrying value. 
 
Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

Page 30



 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original 
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all assets with a determinable finite life (except for investment 
properties), by allocating the value of the assets in the balance sheet over the periods expected to 
benefit from their use.  
  
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:  
 

 Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 
estimated by the valuer.  

 Vehicles, plant and equipment - straight-line allocation over the life of the asset. 

 Infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the life of the asset. 
 
The following standard estimated lives are used for newly acquired assets: 
 
    Years 
Office Buildings  60 
Public Conveniences     50 
Sports and Leisure Centres 40 
Vehicles   10 
Cremators   10 
 
Where an asset includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, these 
components are then treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic 
lives. See Component Accounting policy.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Assets that are sold during the year are treated as if sold on 31 March and the service accounts 
receive a full year’s charge for depreciation as appropriate. Assets acquired during the year attract no 
charge. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The 
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the 
loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised 
losses in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held 

Page 31



for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 
held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 
had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Amounts in excess of £10,000 received from disposals are categorised as capital receipts and 
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, which can then only be used for new capital investment or 
set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).  
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. If the proceeds are £10,000 or less, they are not treated as capital receipts but 
are instead credited to revenue. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets 
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to 
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to the Government. In practice this 
relates only to mortgage repayments, 75% of which must be paid over to the Government.  
 
17. Component Accounting 
 
Components of non-current assets do not always have the same useful lives and may depreciate or 
wear out at different rates throughout their life. Therefore, it is appropriate to depreciate each 
significant component separately over its useful life, in order that the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Account is fairly charged with the consumption of economic benefits of those assets. 
 
Where a significant component is expected to wear out more quickly than the overall asset, it is 
depreciated over a shorter period of time and any subsequent expenditure on restoring or replacing 
the component is capitalised (with any carrying amount of the replaced component being written off to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 
 
From 1st April 2010, components will be recognised when an asset is enhanced, acquired or re-
valued. Where a component is replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the old component is 
derecognised. 
 

 Land and individual buildings will be valued separately. 
 

Page 32



 Assets are deemed to be material and considered for componentisation when the cost or value 
in the Balance Sheet is at least £500,000 (approximately 1% of the authority’s non-current 
assets).  

 

 Each asset will be reviewed individually by the valuer to determine whether any part of a 
material asset has a differing useful life or method of depreciation. The assets will be reviewed 
by the following: 

o Sub Structure  
o Superstructure (frame, upper floors, roof, stairs, external walls, windows, external 

doors, internal walls, partitions, internal doors)  
o Internal finishes (walls, floors and ceilings)  
o Fixtures (sanitary, water, disposal equipment)  
o Engineering services (heating, air treatment, gas installations, lifts, protective, 

communications)  
o External works  

 

 Where component spend is worth 20% of the total cost value of the asset it is deemed to be 
significant. Where information is not readily available to determine the value of components, a 
best estimate will be accounted for and detail of how the estimate was arrived at, in liaison with 
relevant professional advice, will be documented. 

 
18. Heritage Assets 
 
A heritage asset is an asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 
culture. There is no requirement for valuations for heritage assets to be verified by external auditors, 
nor is there any prescribed minimum period between valuations. Where the cost of obtaining valuation 
information is not commensurate with the benefits, the Council will not recognise these assets in the 
Balance Sheet. 
 
The Council’s heritage assets are predominantly the museum stock that is held at the Community 
Heritage Access Centre (CHAC).  
 
The Authority recognises these collections on the Balance Sheet using its base as the detailed 
insurance valuations held by the Authority in respect of the collections. The collections are deemed to 
have indeterminate lives; hence the Authority does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for 
heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts 
arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the 
Authority’s general policies on impairment. Disposals of any heritage assets are accounted for in 
accordance with the Authority’s general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and 
equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and 
are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure 
and capital receipts. 
 
19. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  For instance, the Council may be 
involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation. 

Page 33



Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when the authority has an obligation, and are measured at the best 
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance sheet.  
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year; where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payments required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service 
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority settle the obligation. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the Council’s control. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets  
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the authority. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance Sheets but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
20. Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance. When 
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that 
year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance so 
that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources 
for the Authority.  
 
21. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute   
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not 
result in the creation of non-current assets has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has 
determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of 
council tax.  
 

Page 34



22. VAT 
 
The Council does not include VAT as part of income or expenditure, whether of a capital or revenue 
nature except where it is not able to recover VAT.  
 
23. Related Party Transactions 
 
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
Council. 
 
The materiality of the transaction has been considered before justifying inclusion in the statements.  
Transactions disclosed elsewhere in the statement of accounts are not cross referenced in the note.  
Disclosure is only required where the Council has gone beyond providing financial assistance to 
having a relationship with the assisted organisation that allows it to exert control over the 
organisation’s financial and operational policies.  
 
24. Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the 
major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR 
for themselves.  Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (ie the Collection 
Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR.  Under the 
legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central 
government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR 
collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year.  However, regulations determine the amount of 
council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund.  Therefore, the difference 
between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the 
amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax 
and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and 
prepayments and appeals. 
 
 

Page 35



 

 Audit Committee Forward Plan 

 
Lead Officer: Kelly Wheeler, Case Services Officer 
Contact Details: Kely.wheeler@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462038 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
This report informs Members of the agreed Audit Committee Forward Plan. 

 

Recommendation  
 
Members are asked to comment upon and note the proposed Audit Committee Forward Plan as 
attached. 
 

Audit Committee Forward Plan  

The forward plan sets out items and issues to be discussed over the coming few months and is 
reviewed annually.  

Items marked in italics are not yet confirmed.  

 

 

Background Papers: None 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 9



 

Audit Committee – Forward Plan  

 

Committee 
Date 

Item Responsible Officer 

26 Apr 18  2017/18 Annual Governance Statement 

 Review of Internal Audit 

Paul Fitzgerald 

Paul Fitzgerald 

24 May 18   

28 Jun 18  Register of staff interests – annual review 

 Annual Treasury Management Activity Report 

2017/18 – Needs to go on to Full Council 

 Health, Safety and Welfare (Annual Report) 

 Going Concern Assessment 

 Financial Statements’ training 

Angela Watson 

Finance Specialist 

 

Pam Harvey 

Paul Fitzgerald 

Finance Specialist 

19 Jul 18  Approve Annual Statement of Accounts 

 Approve Summary of Accounts 

 External Audit – Audit Findings Report 

 External Audit – VFM Conclusion 

 Internal Audit Annual Opinion and the 2017/18 

Quarter 4 update 

Finance Specialist 

Finance Specialist 

Paul Fitzgerald (GT) 

Paul Fitzgerald (GT) 

Laura Wicks 

23 Aug 18  Internal Audit – First Quarter Update Laura Wicks 

27 Sep 18  Treasury Management Practices Finance Specialist 

25 Oct 18  Mid-year review of Treasury Strategy – Needs to 

go on to Full Council 

Finance Specialist 

22 Nov 18  Treasury Management – half yearly monitoring 

 Internal Audit – second Quarter update 

 External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 

 Annual Fraud Programme 

Finance Specialist 

Laura Wicks (SWAP) 

Paul Fitzgerald (GT) 

Legal Specialist 

20 Dec 18  Provisional date if required  

24 Jan 19  Treasury Management Strategy Statement 19/20 – 

Needs to go on to Full Council 

Paul Fitzgerald 

28 Feb 19  Internal Audit – third quarter update Laura Wicks (SWAP) 

28 Mar 19  Internal Audit Plan – approve 2019/20 plan 

 Internal Audit – Charter 

Laura Wicks (SWAP) 

Laura Wicks (SWAP) 

 

Page 37


	Agenda
	6 2018/19 SWAP Internal Audit Plan
	7 Internal Audit Charter 2018-19
	SSDC Internal Audit Charter 2018-19

	8 Accounting Policies for 2017/18 Statement of Accounts
	Appx 1 - Statement of Accounting Policies 17-18

	9 Audit Committee Forward Plan
	Forward Plan 2018


